THE

Hem # 2
\/}\ | MCPR 3[25joYy

~N

)
MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION
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March 19, 2004

MEMORANDUM
TO: Montgomery County Planning Board
FROM: Clare Lise Cavicchi, Historic Preservation Planner m/

Montgomery County Department of Park and Planning

SUBJECT:  Addition to Locational Atlas
Derwood Store and Post Office, 15911 Chieftain Avenue
(Demolition Permit Pending)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Add the structure and lot to the Locational Atlas. 1If — during the course of the review of the
Shady Grove Sector Plan — the property is not rezoned to allow for adaptive reuse, remove it
from the Locational Atlas.

BACKGROUND

Staff has received an application to add the property at 15911 Chieftain Avenue to the Locational
Atlas and Index of Historic Sites. The Historic Preservation Commission will consider this 1ssue
at its March 24th meeting and will present its recommendations to the Planning Board on the
25",

The entire Derwood community was identified on the 1976 Locational Atlas as a potential
historic district. In a 1990 evaluation, the County Council found that it did not merit designation
as a historic district and it was removed from the Locational Atlas, although an individual site,
the Crabbe Family Cemetery, was added to the Master Plan.

The three-story structure at 15911 Chieftain Avenue was built in 1903 as a store and post office
10 serve the railroad community of Derwood. The structure and 11,500 square foot lot are
currently being used as a facility to store construction materials. After the building was
neglected for many years, the Montgomery County Department of Housing and Community
Affairs issued a condemnation notice in July 2003. Responding to the condemnation notice, the
property owner filed an application to demolish the building in November 2003. Some



community residents wish to see the building be preserved and restored, to provide a visual link
to the community’s history. These residents filed a formal request in December 2003 to add the
property to the Locational Atlas.

The owner is willing to consider options that might result in preserving the structure if he can
achieve reasonable use of the property.

For many years, this site has been zoned R-200 like the other lots on its block, although the
existing structure does not lend itself to single-family use. Like most stores of its time, this
structure probably had a residential apartment on the second level from the beginning. By the
mid-20™ century, the store closed and the building’s interior was divided into apartments and
served for a good part of the past century as a multi-family dwelling. Converting the building to
a single-family house would be architecturally awkward and difficult to achieve. The present
owner has permission to continue the grandfathered current use of the property — storage of
construction materials.

The condemnation notice requires the owner to make repairs and upgrades to the structure or
demolish it. If the owner were to demolish the existing structure, a new structure would have to
conform to R-200 zoning. Because the site is adjacent to the Derwood Business Center and
opposite the Vehicle Emissions station, its suitability for a single-family dwelling is
questionable. The community has indicated that it does not support commercial use of the
Derwood Store and Post Office site, but may agree with multi-family use.

HISTORY

The Derwood Station stop on the Metropolitan Branch of the B&O Railroad opened in 1875, as
shown on train schedules. The year 1887 was a banner year when the railroad company built an
architect-designed railroad station at Derwood, and, on an adjacent parcel, local businessmen
established a substantial flour mill. The first Derwood post office opened in 1883. Derwood was
formally platted in 1888. Derwood was a thriving community through the first half of the 20"
century. The flour mill was a mainstay of the railroad stop. In 1954, fire destroyed both the flour
mill and the railroad station. Hereafter, the Derwood Station stop ceased to exist.

Clarence Hoskinson built the Derwood Store and Post Office in November 1903, on Redland
Road (now Chieftain Avenue). At about the same time, he built his own five-bay Colonial
Revival residence just up the street, at 15919 Redland Road (now Chieftain Avenue). In 1936,
the miller Richard T. Schwartz and his wife, Mary, purchased the Derwood Store. They operated
the store for some time, and continued operating the post office, even after they closed the store.
A community history by Carlos Avery states that the Derwood Post Office closed in 1974 and
was relocated to Redland Shopping Center in 1974, though a listing of postmasters’ records show
that the Derwood post office was discontinued in 1966.

The two-bay by six-bay structure is three stories tall. The front porch of the structure has been
enclosed. The original German siding has been covered with asbestos shingle siding. The
structure has been enlarged with a two- story rear addition.



DISCUSSION

The Derwood Store and Post Office is a front gable, rectangular structure. The building form is
very typical of commercial structures of the late 19" and early 20" century. Surviving examples
already designated on the Master Plan are found at Seneca (1901), Beallsville (1910), and
Barnesville Station (1918). The Derwood building is larger than most, having three stories
instead of the more typical two stories.

The value of the Derwood Store and Post Office may be in its historic significance, rather than
architectural merit. Because of this, the diminished integrity of the structure may not preclude its
consideration for designation. An example of an altered commercial structure that was
ultimately designated on the Master Plan for Historic Preservation is Angler’s Inn. The building
was historically the Cropley Store and Post Office, also a front gable, rectangular structure.

Staff agrees with the nominators that the Bui]ding was a significant part of the history of the
Derwood community. Sufficient information exists to merit placing the Derwood Store and Post
Office on the Locational Atlas for further study.

The challenging question of an appropriate zone that will enable the owner to preserve and
restore the structure and offer a viable use is being addressed through the Shady Grove Sector
Plan process. In terms of Sector Plan context, a new Sector Plan is currently underway for this
area with the Public Hearing Draft before the Planning Board. Worksessions are in progress. The
proposed Plan recommends the surrounding industrial zoned areas for multifamily and
townhouse uses. This site is under consideration for multifamily housing as well, in order to
create a viable and compatible use for the building. Preservation of the historical resources of
Old Derwood is one of the goals of the Sector Plan. Community Based Planning staff supports
the designation of the structure on the Locational Atlas.

It is likely that any recommended zone will require a zoning text amendment, given the non-
standard features of the structure and small lot size. The intent is to preserve the existing
structure and allow six apartment units on the 11,500 square-foot site.

The reason the staff recommendation includes a provision for removing the property from the
Locational Atlas is that historic preservation staff feels it is important to assure that the property
owner is not put into an untenable situation. This is a building which does not lend itself to
conversion to a single-family house under R-200 zoning. If appropriate zoning is not granted
through the Sector Plan process, preservation of the building is unrealistic and the owner should
not be required to preserve the structure.

CONCLUSION

The Derwood Store and Post Office is a building which tells a great deal about the history and
development of Derwood as a community. It is one of the few remaining civic/commercial
buildings that recall this early village. Adding the building to the Locational Atlas will provide



some temporary protection for the building while a more long-term plan for its reuse and
renovation can be developed, in conjunction with the ongoing Shady Grove Sector Plan.

Derwood Store and Post Office, 15911 Chieftain Avenue
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December 15, 2004

Susan Velasquez

Chair, Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission
8787 Georgia Avenue

Silver Spring, MD 20910-3760

Dear Ms Velasquez:
Please consider the Old Derwood Post Office at 15911 Redland Road for listing on the
Locational Atlas of Historic Sites as per your ordinance, Chapter 24(A) of the
Montgomery County Code.
We, the Old Derwood and Derwood Community Residents, have prepared the required
Maryland Historical Trust “Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties Form” as per
required.
Over 60 people support the designation. Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely yours,

~ :gseph ;arel]o '

Shady Grove Alliance Vice President

Cc: Clare Cavicchi, Preservation Planner



Maryland Historical Trust =~ InvemoryNo:’T uf
Maryland Inventory of
Historic Properties Form
1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic 014 Derwood formerfstore and warehouse served as Post OFfice/
oher ~_a residence and an apartment. building

2' L atlon 15911 Derwood Road (AS PERDEMOLTIONPERMITNUMBER324552—ENCLOSED)
- LOC Located at the corner of Chleftlan Ave. & Derwood Road. :

street and number (Tax. Record) 15911 Redland Road , A __ " not for publication -
city, town nm-‘ o Maryland 208 ‘;x5 ___ vicinity
county Montgomery

‘3. Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name

Joao Morgado 1 | |
streetand number 4496 Hallet Street telephone f:3'0‘l?94}g—259§ (W)
state zipcodeﬂkgggégez—cu 78 (1)

cy.town . Rockville. | MD
4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. T,and Records of :Montgomery liber 1512 folio 38

tax ma tax parcel tax ID number 04
P Gs22 P : 00045257

city, town Rockville, MD

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

________Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

*Derwood Railroad District

was approved for historic
designation. Historic
designation was not supported
by the majority of residents
at that time (approx. 10/15yr.

—x*x__ Other: ago). Many now wish to save
6. Classification . (Z}‘;e/?é)ul dlitlgTErflng nominated.
Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count
district public agriculture landscape sContributing Noncontributing
X _building(s) X _private commerce/trade recreation/culture | buildings
X _structure both defense religion sites
T site X domestic social structures
object __education ______transportation objects
funerary work in progress Total
government unknown
health care % __vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources

industry other: previously listed in the Inventory



7. Description Inventory No.

Condition The condition varies as discussed below.
excellent » daabmmdQ??QOt make an indepth determination
— —_ without further study.
___good ____ruins
X_ fair ___ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

7. Description

The former store and warehouse building that also served as the
post office, a residence and an apartment building was first
built in November, 1903. The original building was a store, post
office and residence. At some later date, it was enlarged.

The building is a long, narrow, three story rectangular shaped
structure with a center gable metal roof. The exterior sides

of the building are covered with white 12" by 12" shingles.

Most of the windows are in place, some on the lower level have
been broken and have been boarded up. The original wooden window
frames and other exposed wood needs to be replaced. The building
appears to be a sturdy upright structure that is approximately

30 feet by 70 feet. When I entered the building three years ago,
I determined that it was structurally sound based on a visual
examination of the interior which included the floors, walls

and roof rafters. From all accounts, the exterior has not been
extensively altered. We cannot determine when it was covered
with shingled siding - perhaps 50/60 years ago. The porch facing
Redland Road was enclosed to form a room from which the post
office continued to operate when, we assume, the store was closed
and the entire interior was converted to living space. We do

not have the the exact date of the conversion and/or enlargement;
however, we have the names of individuals who lived there in

1942 which means that alterations would have been made more

than 60 years ago. The post office closed in 1974. The building

has been vacant since then.



8. Significance Inventory No.

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
__ 1600-1699 __ agriculture __ economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts
__1700-1799 __ archeology __ education X industry __ philosophy
__ 1800-1899 % architecture __ engineering _- invention A politics/government
_X 1900-1999 __an __ entertainment/ __ landscape architecture __ religion
__ 2000- __ commerce recreation _law ___science

__ communications __ ethnic heritage __ literature __ social history

__ community planning  __ exploration/ __ maritime history X transportation

- conservation settlement __ military X other: PeST cEFICE
Specificdates 1903 Architect/Builder Clarence Hoskinson

Construction dates Construction began November 1903

Evaluation for: Please ewaluate for any category that will save this building.

x ___National Register X Maryland Register not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form — see manual.)

This landmark structure is being threatened for demolition.
Failure to preserve this building as part of the Shady Grove
Sector Plan would be a tragic loss in our effort to preserve
and enhance 0l1d Derwood. The Maryland-National Capital Park and
Planning Commission, in their proposed Shady Grove Sector Plan,
has committed to enhancing and preserving 0l1d Derwood. If we
are to preserve and enhance 01d Derwood, it is crucial that we
save this original landmark from being destroyed by placing it
on the Locational Atlas or create a conservation district or

protect it in some manner.

This building is a significant part of the town of 0ld Derwood,
referred to as the Derwood Railroad District. Construction of

this building began in November of 1903 by storekeeper Clarence
Hoskinson. The store was run by Ulysses S. Walters from 1912-
1914. It was purchased in July of 1914 by John L. Welsh who

ran his mercantile business there until his death November 27,
1921. In 1936 the store building was purchased by Richard and
Mary’Schgwartz. This landmark structure has survived for a century
and the activities conducted there have served the community

well especially in the years when the B & O Railroad conducted
business in ths Derwood Railroad District. The Derwood Post Office
provided mail service until it closed in 1974. Concurrently,

the building served as a store, warehouse and residence. Its

final use provided eight residential apartments for Derwood

residents.

According to Wayne Goldstein, president of Montgomery
Preservation,Inc., this threatened structure is one of the last
of its kind. The only remaining buildings with a similar historic
use anywhere in Montgomery County are the vacant general store

in Dickerson and the Darby Store in Beallsville.



9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No.

1. Shady Grove Sector Plan December 2003 Pages 36-38. (Copy enclosed)

2. Testimony before Planning Board on Shady Grove sector Plan- 12/4/03 Wayne Goldstein Montgomery Preservation, Inc. (copy
enclosed)

3. Information taken from the Maryland Historical Trust state Historic Sites Inventory From Survey No. 22- 33, Dated 5/84. (Copy
enclosed)

*Montgomery County Land and Judgment records.

*Montgomery County Historical Society Library Files, etc.

*Interview with Derwood resident, Mary Schwartz.

*Plat of Derwood, 1888 (EBP 11/395) & Deets & Maddox Atlas, 1917

4.Derwood Days April 26-May 4, 1986 pages 26 and 28. (Copy enclosed)

5.Short History of Derwood, Jo Seymour article (copy enclosed)

6.Derwood Post office- Postmasters (copy enclosed)

7.Property Deeds (copy enclosed)

10. Geographical Data

11,580 SF i

Acreage of surveyed property '
three-story building is .approx. 30 X 70 feet:
, 3 >

Acreage of historical setting

Quadrangle name Quadrangle scale:

. Verbal boundary description and justification

Building is at corner of Chieftian Avenue (formerly Redland Road}
_in the 1980's Redland Road i was rerouted from Route 355 to
Muncaster bypassing 0ld Derwood) and Derwood Road.

The property is zoned R-200 and joins two other R-200 properties.
The houses on the two adjoining lots are approximatelfy 100 years
old and are occupied by families.

11. Form Prepared by

namefitte  Joseph parello -~

Old City of Derwood Resident Representative QS EL /WZ"Q'R> date December 15, 2003 -

organization Vice President 11 Shady Grove Civic Alliance = =

- TeTiTiom (W) 202-782-6533
street & number 15821 Derwood Road (H) 301-990-7613
state Maryland 20855

telephone

city or town Derwood

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600



Real Property Search - Individual Report http://sdateert3 resiusa.org/rp_rew...2&SearchType=Account&submit2=SEAR

‘ 1

t of Assessments and Taxation

' ‘New Search

Account Identifier: Districf— 04 Account Number - 00045257

‘Owner Information

MORGADO, JOAO Use: RESIDENTIAL
Principal Residence: NO

15911 REDLAND RD Deed Reference: 1) /19682/ 743
DERWOOD MD 20853 2)

Owner Name:

Mailing Address:

[ - .. Location & Structure I
Premises Address Zoning Legal Description
15911 REDLAND RD R200 DERWOOD SEC 4
DERWOOD 20853
!Map Grid  Parcel Sub District _ Subdivision Section Block Lot Group Plat No:
GS22 502 4 P1 82 Plat Ref:
D Town
Special Tax Areas Ad Valorem
Tax Class 53
lﬂ Primary Structure Built Enclosed Area Property Land Area County Use
0000 11,580.00 SF 111
D Stories Basement Type Exterior
; Value Information . L
Base Value Phase-in Assessments
Value As Of As Of As Of
01/01/2003 07/01/2002 07/01/2003
Land: 78,290 127,580
Improvements: 16,830 18,710
Total: 95,120 146,290 95,120 112,176
Preferential Land: 0 0 0 0
L ~ Transfer Information
Seller: MILLONIG CORPORATION Date: 09/18/2001 Price: $110,000
Type: IMPROVED ARMS-LENGTH Deed1: /19682/ 743 Deed2:
Qller: MILLONIG, PAUL A ET AL Date: 10/05/2000 Price: $40,000
Type: NOT ARMS-LENGTH Deedl: /18446/ 254 Deed2:
ier: Date:  06/18/1979 Price:  $18,000
Type: IMPROVED ARMS-LENGTH Deed1: /5339/623 Deed2:

Partial Exempt Assessments Class 07/01/2002 07/01/2003

County 000 0 0

State 000 0 0

Municipal 000 0 0

L]

Tax Exempt: NO Special Tax Recapture:

Exempt Class:

* NONE *
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The signatures to save the Old Post Office noted above were completed in 10 days. Due to the bad weather -
the past two Sundays we could not get additional 20- 30 signature from the parishioners of the Derwood
Bible church (The services were cancelled due to snow). Due to the high emergency asked by the people of
Derwood (Old Derwood and 20855 zip code) that this property being saved and have this property in the
Maryland Historic Trust process before demotion on 18 December 2003
date) or the 28 December 2003 (as per the Department of Permitting.)

(as per Department of Housing




Short History of Derwood, Maryland Page 1 of 2

SHORT HISTORY OF [;
DERWOOD, MARYLAND —

Picture from the collection of Richard A. Cook

The following article was compiled by Jo Seymour from information provided by Carlos P. Avery and
the Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission.

In the late 1800's Derwood, previously just a crossroads with a blacksmith shop and a post office, began
its transformation into a small but thriving community. The catalyst was the opening of the Metropolitan
Branch of the B & O Railroad, a 43-mile link between Washington, DC, and the B & O "main-stem" at
Point of Rocks, MD. The "Met" played an important role in the growth of central Montgomery County

and the development of towns and villages along its right-of-way. .

mlthough the Post Office had been operating since 1883, 1886-1889 are significant dates to remember,
as it was during this time that the second Derwood station was built (the first was an open "waiting
shed"). It was a small Victorian Gothic board and batten structure (see illustration) designed by E.
Francis Baldwin, the architect for the B & O Railroad, Baltimore Division. It was constructed at a cost
of $682.55. Other stations designed by Baldwin, which are still standing, can be seen in Kensington,

Rockville, Gaithersburg, Dickerson, and Point of Rocks.

The Derwood station served not only as a commuter stop but also as a freight and baggage station and
an office for handling agricultural and dairy products for the local area. Aside from the railroad and
surrounding farming operations, the only other industry was Schwartz's mill (a flour mill) built in 1887
on Chieftain Avenue. The Montgomery County Sentinel of April 15, 1887 noted that the three-story, 32
X 56 structure was to be built directly across the tracks from the railroad station. The B & O built a

siding there to serve it.

As the community grew so did the need for housing. The majority of the homes in Historic Derwood
today are examples of turn-of-the-century vernacular architecture which housed the workers in the
community. Other structures of interest are a church located on the site at 15812 Esquire Court (now
used as a Masonic Lodge meetinghouse); a now vacant warehouse and store built in 1903 at the corner
of Chieftain and Derwood Rd; and Hall's General Store, now a residence (15833 Derwood Rd). In
addition, there is a 1903 Colonial Revival house built by store keeper Clarence Hoskinson which later



Short History of Derwood, Maryland Page 2 of 2

became the home of the town's miller, Richard Schwartz (15919 Chieftain Avenue). It remains an
architectural jewel with its palladian window, pediments, and strong dentilled cornice. These buildings,
taken together, represent a grouping of harmonious styles, textures and scale which convey a common
history, and are typical of communities which existed in many areas of the county in the later part of the

nineteenth century. (Refer to Derwood map.)

A century ago, passenger revenues were sought by the railroads, and by the late 1880's the "high-water
mark" in passenger traffic had probably been reached. The May 1887 schedule for the "Met" listed ten
inbound trains a day from Derwood to Union Station in Washington, DC. The fare for the hour-long trip
was 60 cents with some special group reductions. But sandwiched between the more established
communities of Rockville and Gaithersburg, Derwood did not experience the accelerated growth that
those cities enjoyed as a result of the railroad. Derwood's population remained small: B & O
publications list it as 72 in 1905, 170 in 1917, and 225 in 1928.

Passenger traffic fell steadily in the 1900's as the automobile grew in numbers. As a point of
comparison, the 1935 schedule listed only two inbound and two outbound stops each day at Derwood.
Then on January 7, 1954, 67 years after its construction, Schwartz Mill caught fire in the early morning
hours and was destroyed, as was the Derwood station. The fire put an end to the mainstay of commercial
rail traffic there. This, combined with the decline in passenger traffic, made the rebuilding of the station
impractical and Derwood station as a stop on the B & O line ceased to exist.

In 1974 the old Derwood post office closed and was reopened in its present location in the Redland
Shopping Center. It retained the name "Derwood Branch" thereby designating the 20855 Zip Code area
as present day Derwood. The Derwood area was originally referred to as "Deer Park" and it is possible
that "Deer Park" later became "Deer Wood" which local idiom translated into "Derwood."

With the construction of the Metro's Red Line to Shady Grove in 1984, the last remaining bits of
evidence of the B & O station and the mill in Derwood were erased. But perhaps the Metro's terminus,
some 300 yards further north of Redland Road, will be the new "Derwood Station." It has already
brought to Derwood the growth and development that the B & O did not.
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Derwood

Randolph Watkins

Mrs. Mary C. Watkins

Joseph Carmack

Uriah Ricketts

John P, Belt

John P. Bell

David E. Coffman
NB 15 Jun 1891

Mary E. Matthews

Mary Mullican

David E. Coffman
NB 17 Oct 1901

Clarence H. Hoskinson

George D. Walters

John L. Welsh

Margaret B. Welsh
Commission Signed

Alvin E.Higgins
Acting
Assumed Charge

Alvin E. Higgins
Confirmed
Commission Signed
Transferred To Rural

Carrier

Edward P. Ganley
Acting
Assumed Charge
Remarks: Pres.

Edward P.Ganley
Confirmed
Commission Signed
Assumed Charge
Remarks: Rel.

Edward P. Ganley
Nominated
Confirmed
Appointed Pres.
Commission Signed’
Assumed Charge

Edward P. Ganley
Confirmed
Commission Signed
Assumed Charge
Deceased

Ernest C. Zebuhr, Jr
Acting
Assumed Charge

Ernest C. Zebuhr, Jr.
Nominated
Confirmed
Appointed Pres.
Comission Signed
Assumed Charge
Transferred

Disxontinued-Effective
Mail to Rockville

18 April
27 April
23 Aprll
= Oct
18 “Jan.
18 Jan
16 Oct
25 May
3  May
11 Oct
5 Apr
16 - Aug
5 Apr
6 May
17 May
6 Sept
25  Aug
13 Jun
20 Jul
7 Dec
29 Nov
1 Jul
4  Jun
20  Jun
1 Jul
1 Ju
24 Jul
30  Jul
31 Jul
31 Jul
30 Sept
4/ Aug
26 Sept
30 Sept
13 Apr
13 COct
31 Aug
4L Feb
8 Mar
9 Mar
9 Mar
31  May
14 Jan
14 Jan

1883
1885
1887
1887
1889
1889
1889

1893
1895
1897

1905
1913
1915
1922
1922

1933
1933

1934
1934

1937
1937.
1946

1938

1938
1938
1946

1946
1946
1946
1946
1946

1947
1947
1947
1954

1954
1954

1955
1955
1955
1955

1955
1966

1966



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

